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1. Name of Property

historic name Fisher-Chapman Farmstead

other names/site number

The Homeridge
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street & number 24818 Homeridge Drive not for publication
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jonal statewide  Nocal
ZZWU«CWO@ e 2% 2oy

Signature of certifying officialfTitlc ' Date

DSHP O

State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government

In my opinion, the property ___ meets ___ does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of commenting official Date

Title State or Federal agency/bureau or Tribal Government




United States Department of the Interior

National Park Service / National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

NPS Form 10-900

Fisher-Chapman Farmstead
Name of Property

OMB No. 1024-0018

(Expires 5/31/2012)

Jersey, IL

County and State

4. National Park Service Certification

I hereby certify that this property is:

__entered in the National Register
___determined not eligible for the National Register

___ other (explain:)

___ determined eligible for the National Register

___removed from the National Register

Signature of the Keeper

Date of Action

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply.) (Check only one box.)

X | private x | building(s)
public - Local district
public - State site
public - Federal structure

object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
12 0 buildings
1 0 sites
1 1 structures
0 0 objects
14 1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register

N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

DOMESTIC/secondary structure

AGRICULTURE/SUBSTANCE/animal facility

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)

DOMESTIC/single dwelling

DOMESTIC/secondary structure

AGRICULTURE/SUBSTANCE/animal facility

7. Description
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Architectural Classification Materials
(Enter categories from instructions.) (Enter categories from instructions.)
LATE VICTORIAN/Italianate foundation: @ STONE

walls: BRICK

WOOD/weatherboard

roof:  Asphalt shingle

other:

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance of the property. Explain contributing and noncontributing resources if
necessary. Begin with a summary paragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as its location,
setting, size, and significant features.)

Summary Paragraph

The Fisher-Chapman Farmstead is located one mile north of Jerseyville, Illinois on the west side of Highway 67.
The 17.80 acre property includes the residence, outbuildings, and acreage. There are two entrances to the
property on the eastern side. The northern most entrance is a gravel driveway which is entered through a black
wrought iron gate and has “Homeridge” spelled out over an entryway. The southern entrance to the property has
a small sign which says “Service Entrance.” The house faces east and sits one eighth of a mile from the
highway at the end of a drive lined with Norwegian Spruce and white pine trees. The residence, a large Italianate
with a cupola, is original with the only additions being a garage and bathroom, which were added onto the back
in the year 2000. The house sits on the original farmstead surrounded by soft maple, white pine, cypress, and
blue spruce trees. When the Chapmans lived here the south yard was a formal English garden.

The south side of the grounds has a swimming pool, a wood frame screened pool house, a water fountain, and a
small building which is reportedly a ticket booth, with an ogee roof, from the 1904 St. Louis World’s Fair.!
Those properties are not historically associated with the property. The water pump on the north side of the
residence is historically associated with the property.

Narrative Description

The farmstead was a large working farm. The historical significance of the running of such a large working
farm is still evident by the outbuildings found behind the homestead. Behind the main house there is a two-
story and a one- story house, which housed the help. The two-story house sits behind the house and to the north.
The one story house is located behind and across the driveway from the main house. A map is included of the
property due to the several outbuildings existing on the property. The main house has bedrooms, which were
used by the servants. The other houses provided living quarters for the help and families of those who worked
on the farm. At one time there was a large two- story house on the north side of the main house for the overseer
and his family. That house was demolished in the early 1960s by the previous owners.>

! Howard and Sue Landon, personal interview.
2 e
Ibid.
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The house has a compound plan, consisting of the main living quarters —the hipped roof portion with a square-
shaped massed plan, two units wide and two units deep, connected to a rectangular, gable on hipped appendage.
The appendage, which houses the kitchen and family room, has a lower roofline and is recessed back from the
main living quarters. A one-story garage was constructed to the rear of the appendage on the west elevation in
2000 and the area for the breakfast room was enclosed in the 1960s.

The house has a brick and stone foundation about eight feet below ground extending upward into exterior and
interior walls of solid brick in a common bond pattern with seven stretcher rows per header row. The bricks for
the house were made on the property. There are no records to name the original architect. However, records
do show that Joe Page was an apprentice carpenter here under the direction of William Embley.> During the
time the house was built, Embley was the architect for several other houses with similar architectural styles.
The house is cubic shaped with a symmetrical front fagade. The rear of the house has a slight drop in elevation
for the two story service wing.

The hipped roofs are low pitched with wide overhangs and are covered in a gray asphalt shingle. There are
dentils under the soffit. Capitals crest the roofs of the belvedere and the porte cochere. The belvedere has a
weathervane atop its gray shingled roof and sits centered on the main part of the house. The belvedere is
clapboard, painted white with paired hooded windows on each side. There are three brick chimneys. One is
located on the south elevation toward the southeast, one on the north elevation toward the northeast, and one is
off center on the northeast part of the service wing. The home has 15 rooms which include the belvedere. There
are 55 double-hung windows with two-over-two lights. All have brick segmental arched hoods and wood sills.
There are eight half windows in the basement.

The front fagade of the house faces east and there is a one -story partial width covered porch which extends out
15 feet. The north side of the porch has four long stone steps leading up to the porch. There is a railing around
the east and south sides of the porch. The porch supports are clusters of slender columnettes with Corinthian
capitals. There is a double door entrance to the house from the front porch. Each door has a ruby red glass
etched window with pictures of hanging baskets. Both doors have molded trim. There is a window on each
side of the porch and a window on each side of the door. There is a set of paired windows centered over the
door. The upper level has one window on each side of the porch then moving in toward the center there is a
window next to each outer window.

The south elevation has four windows on the upper level and four windows on the lower level on the main wing
of the house. Each window is directly over another window. In the center of the upper level there is a small
window. The small window is in the bathroom which is shared between two bedrooms. The small window is a
single pane with white molding around it. The small window has four black iron rails with a diamond shape in
the upper center. Going west on the south elevation there is an opening under the first lower level window to a
previous storage area for wood. There is a tri-split half window under the last three lower level windows with a
window well around each basement half window. White trim separates the foundation from the house. Before
reaching the service wing the main wing has an upper and lower window facing west. Both windows have the

3 Reminiscences of Uncle Joe Page, Joe Page, 1937, p. 1. A book shows that Joe Page was an apprentice carpenter here under the
direction of William Embley. “I did not incline to this mode of life and bound myself out to William Embley, carpenter of Jerseyville,
for three years at $2.00 a week and my board....The inside work of ‘Hazel Dell,” Colonel Fulkerson’s farm north of Jerseyville, ‘Home
Ridge,” the Chapman property, the Gubser House in Jerseyville...are evidences of the work, I performed.”
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same trim as all of the other windows in the main wing of the house. The upper level has a half window on the
north side of it. Below the lower window there is an outside entrance to the basement with a white wooden
double lift door.

The second appendage of the south elevation has a split roof which drops about two feet with decorative
moldings and a wide eave overhang. There are two windows over what was a porch and is now a room with an
outside entrance. There are two one-over-one windows on each side of the door with white wooden window
boxes under each window. There is a water pump next to the east window box. Two concrete steps lead up to
the door. The third appendage of the house has a roof rising to a center gable with white wooden extensions in
the center of the wing. Just below the centered roof is an upper window and directly below it is a lower level
window, which has the same trim as all the other service wing windows of only brick arches. The next
appendage was originally the summer kitchen and is now used as a family room. There are two single split pane
windows with the arch shaped brick molding. The one-story garage and bathroom were added to the back of the
family room. There is a step up to the porch door and two small windows like the windows in the fourth wing.
East of the door is a small black decorative statue attached to the outside wall.

Continuing on around to the west elevation is the rear of the house. The sloping gable roof has a chimney
centered on the roof of the third extension. Below the roof are two upper level windows facing west. Both
windows have the same hooded brick arch trim as the other service extension windows. The roof then extends
out to the end of the garage with an entrance door on the south end of the wing facing west.

The garage continues on around the north elevation with doors for a two car garage. East of the two double
doors is a doorway with two concrete steps leading up to an entry door. There is a window on the east end of
the family room just like the two on the south elevation. The third wing has an upper and lower level window in
its center. The second wing has two upper and lower level windows in its center. The house continues on
around to the main wing.

All of the windows on the north elevation of the main wing are the same as the other windows on the rest of the
main wing. The north elevation only has seven windows. There are four windows on the upper level. Continue
to the east end of the lower level and there are windows under all the upper level windows except for the next to
last window. Under the next to last window is a doorway found under the roof of the port cochere. The porte
cochere was added on during the time of the Chapman residence (c. 1910).*

Interior

The main entrance to the house is from the double doors on the east side of the house. The staircase features a
curved handrail, turned balusters, and a decorative newel post. Beneath the treads on the open stairs there is
ornamentation resembling brackets in profile. Two wood paneled doors with door surrounds are located
beneath the stairs; a half-door followed by a full-length door. The main hallway leads straight back to the
breakfast room. All of the door openings have wood trim. Halfway down the hall is the staircase which extends
up to the belvedere. At the back end of the hall on the left is a half bathroom. The bathroom was added to the
house when indoor plumbing was installed. There is a small window with the original glass pane on the west
side of the bathroom. The north side of the hallway has a built-in for a telephone. The ceiling in the hallway is
a 12 foot ceiling as are those on the first floor of the main wing. The hall floors and the floors throughout the
main part of the house are wooden oak.

¢ Howard and Sue Landon, personal interview.
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Turning left (south) from the main hall is the south parlor. The south parlor entrance has two, six panel double
pocket doors. The chandelier is original to the house since the time of electricity. There are two windows on
the east side and two windows on the south side of the room. The south parlor has a brick fireplace with white
mantle shelf. The original fireplace was replaced by an Art Deco fireplace (c. 1920) with the two arms for the
Chapman family to display prominent porcelain pieces. The west end of the south parlor connects to the library
with an open doorway. The library has two windows on the south side and one window on the west side. The
ceiling-high shelves were added to the room (¢.1910-1911) about the same time indoor plumbing was added to
the house.

Turning right (north) from the main hall is the north parlor. The north parlor entrance has two six panel double
pocket doors. There are two windows on the east side and one window on the north side of the room. There is
a black marble fireplace on the north side of the room. The chandelier is original to the house since the time of
electricity. The west side of the fireplace has a two panel door with a windowed transom which leads outside to
the porte cochere. The west end of the north parlor has two six panel pocket doors leading into the dining room.

The dining room has two windows on the north side. The west wall of the dining room has had a built in china
cabinet since 1912. The top half of the china cabinet has two doors and each door has 12 small glass panes.
The doors also have the original glass knobs. The center of the cabinet has an open shelf. The lower portion of
the china cabinet has six storage drawers which have the same molding as the windows. At the back end of the
dining room on the south side is an open doorway leading to the main hallway. Directly across from the open
doorway is a small storage area with a wooden door at the back of the staircase.

Continuing west from the hallway is a step down to the breakfast room. Originally the breakfast room had been
a sun porch with French doors. The breakfast room has four windows on the south side and a door leading to
the outside. The breakfast room has a bead board seven-and-a-half foot ceiling. The sun porch was original to
the house until (c. 1965). The bead board was added in 2001; the original ceiling had water damage and needed
to be replaced. The floor is vinyl tile.

The north side of the breakfast room has a step up to a doorway to the kitchen. The east side of the kitchen has
an open doorway to the dining room. Directly upon entering the kitchen from the dining room, to the right, is a
door leading down to the basement. The north side of the kitchen has two windows. The northeast corner of the
kitchen has a door leading to the back stairs which was the servant’s entrance to the kitchen. The wooden floor
with two and one fourth inch planks are original to the house. There are seven support beams running across the
ceiling which were put in (c.1965) by the previous owners. The south and west walls have built in cabinets
which were put in (c.1965) after the previous owners removed the original cabinets. There is a cabinet on the
north wall between the two windows. The center of the kitchen has an island with a double sink.

The northwest corner of the kitchen has an open doorway leading into the butler’s pantry. The south wall is a
built in cabinet area. The upper part of the area has two overhead cabinets. Below the overhead cabinets are
two doors, each made with six small glass panes. Underneath the doors is an open storage area. Under the open
area are four drawers and two single panel swing out doors are at the bottom of the wall. The northwest end of
the room has a window. Next to the window is another cabinet area with two panel swing out doors. Below are
then two doors, each made with nine small glass panes and three single panel doors at the bottom of the wall.

The northwest end of the butler’s pantry has an open doorway leading to what was originally a holding kitchen.
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This area was used as the operation center when the home was a bed and breakfast. In the past food was held
here, after being cooked in the summer kitchen, until it was time to carry it to the dining room. There is a
window on the south side of the room. The south side has a sink which was installed when the house first got
plumbing. Continuing west through the doorway is the family room, which was the summer kitchen. There are
two windows on the south side and one window on the north side. All three windows are single pane glass
windows. The windows are custom windows designed to maintain the original exterior brick archways. Before
the windows were added the room’s north and south exits had two barn-like sliding doors. The custom
windows were added in 2000. The southwest corner of the room has a small entryway leading to a bathroom.
The northwest corner of the room leads to a small hallway. Continuing straight across the hallway is a double
car garage addition which was done in 2000. The garage has two of the original windows from the summer
kitchen on the south side of the room. The west side of the garage has an exit on the west side of the room. The
north end of the hallway has an outside entrance.

Second Floor

The full wrap-around staircase leads up to a small landing to the west and curves around to the attic on the east
side. Half way up the staircase is a small double-sash window on the west side. The small landing leads to a
bathroom, with a four panel door, over the family room. The bathroom stool tank lid has the year 1903 on it.
The stool has a pull chain. The bathroom has a two-over-two window on the south side of the room. The
southwest corner of the room has a small closet with a two panel door. Both the closet door and the entry door
have original gold decorative doorknobs. The sink has the original faucets. The floor is one inch hexagon
ceramic tile with one-half inch borders.

The staircase then leads to a hallway, lit by a glass light fixture with a grape motif. The east end of the hall has
a window seat with built-in storage beneath paired windows with segmental arches. The storage are has four
single-paneled doors.

The second floor has four bedrooms in the main building: two bedrooms on the south side, and two bedrooms
on the north side. Each entry way of the bedrooms is directly across from the one on the opposite side of the
hallway. All of the rooms have four-paneled doors with wood surrounds and brass door knobs.

At the top of the stairs on the southwest end of the hall is the room that was originally the master bedroom. The
northeast end of the room has a small closet with a four panel door. Over the top of the closet is a storage area
with a two panel door. Next to the closet in an alcove is a white porcelain pedestal sink; above the sink is the
original wooden medicine cabinet. To the south of the sink is the entryway to a small bathroom. The south side
of the room has two windows and the west side of the room has one window. There is a steam heater under
each window. The eleven-and-a-half foot ceiling has a fan with lights.

Between this and the next bedroom is a small bathroom. The bathroom has a south window with leaded glass.
The top half of the window is diamond shaped. The screened part of the window swings inward. A door on the
east side of the bathroom connects to the next bedroom. The west side has a small closet with a four panel door.
Next to the closet is a white porcelain sink. This is the only other original remaining porcelain sink from the
Chapman’s renovations. The bedroom has two windows on the south side and two windows on the east side.
Originally there was a fireplace between the two windows but it was removed around 1900 and replaced by
steam radiators. There is a steam heater under the southwest and east side windows. The ceiling light fixture
has two large bulbs resembling an old glass lantern.
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Continue up the staircase which ends at a doorway to the attic. Another set of stairs then goes south to the
belvedere. The belvedere has eight windows with two windows in each direction. The windows are two over
two with arch frames, as are the other main wing windows. Originally the belvedere had a trap door leading to
it. The trap door is now gone and is replaced by an open area surrounded with wooded railing. Return back
down the stairs to the main hallway.

The next bedroom is entered from the northeast end of the hallway. There are two windows on the south side
and two windows on the east side. Originally there was a fireplace between the two windows on the north side
which in no longer there. There are steam heaters under both east windows and the northwest window. The
northwest corner of the room has a doorway to a private bathroom with a sink, shower, and stool. The bathroom
was converted from a closet after the Landons moved here. The bathroom door is original from the closet.

The southeast part of the northwest bedroom has a full private bathroom. The bathroom was converted from a
closet after the Landons moved here. The bathroom door is original from the closet. Next to the bathroom is a
small closet without overhead storage. The north side of the room has two windows with a steam heater under
each one. Originally there was a fireplace between the two windows which is no longer there. The top half of
the ceiling lamp has a floral motif. The northwest end of the room has an entry door to the main hallway. The
southeast corner of the room has a four panel entry door. The other side of the door has two steps leading down
to the back hallway. There is not an entrance to the back hallway from the main hallway. The back hallway
leads to what was the servant’s quarters.

The hallway continues back to the west end of the house. The ceiling is eight and a half foot and the width of
the hallway is three feet. Halfway down the hall there is a bathroom on the south side. Two steps lead down
into the bathroom. The floor has two inch hexagon ceramic tile. The walls and ceiling have small light fixtures
which are original to the time electricity was installed in the house.

The floor in the hallway and the bedroom on the north side have four inch wide pine wood planks. The
bedroom is directly across the hall from the bathroom. Upon entrance to the bedroom is a small closet with a
two panel door on the west side. The bedroom has two two-over-two windows on the north side. There is a
steam heated under the northwest window. There is a closet in the northeast corner with a step up and a four
panel door. The west wall is covered with shelves which later had doors added on to it.  The butler’s bell still
exists on the east wall.

At the end of the hall is another bedroom. This bedroom floor has three and a half inch wide planks. There are
two windows on the west side, one window on the northwest side, and one window on the southeast side. There
is a closet on the northeast side and a closet on the southeast side of the room which were added in 1992.
Originally there were no closets in this room. All of the back bedrooms have eight and a half foot ceilings.

The staircase continues to the attic, where another set of stairs leads to the belvedere. The belvedere has eight
windows; two on each wall. The windows are two-over-two with segmental arched tops. Originally there was a
trap door but that was opened up and has a railing around it.

Basement

The full basement of the house can be accessed by two cellar doors on the north side of the house or by a
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southeast interior door in the kitchen. The basement has eight half windows plus another half window in the
furnace room. There are three rooms in the basement. The floors in the basement are brick floors.

MACHINE STORAGE BUILDING (Building A)

This building is a frame structure covered with corrugated fiberglass siding. It is a U-shaped with a total of
3544 square feet, plus a 14’ x 36’ shed addition off the southwest corner. The main structure has a concrete
floor; the shed addition is only gravel. There is an overhead door in the shed addition and several sets of
swinging doors on the front of the main building. The floor of the main structure is a combination of metal and
asphalt composition. The shed addition has a minimal-pitched roof which is covered with rolled roofing. The
building is currently used for storage. It was built c. 1900 and is a contributing building.

GARDENER’S HOUSE ( Building B -- Office)

The house is a small four room house. The roof is a gabled composition roof. The house has painted clap-board
siding and a brick foundation. The house is T-shaped. The entry door is on the east elevation. There is a one
over one window on both sides of the door. The porch has a wooden overhang. Continue on around to the
south side. There is a one over one window. Then there are five two over two windows. The west elevation
has three two-over-two windows. Then there is a larger one-over-two window. The north elevation has two
one-over-one windows.  The house was used as housing for some of the farmhands. The house was built
¢.1890. It is a contributing building and is currently used as a rental house.

EQUIPMENT WORKSHOP BUILDING (Building C)

This building is a combination garage and workshop plus a modern carport addition. The carport was
constructed to cover a hydraulic lift. The exterior of the building is covered with aluminum siding and has a
combination asphalt and corrugated metal roof. There are large over-head doors to the front (east side) and the
south side of the building. Two smaller over-head doors are also on the south and west sides. This building has
been insulated, has a concrete floor and a built-in window air conditioner. The building was built c. 1900 with
the newer addition being added on c. 1964. It is a contributing building and is currently being used as storage
building for boats.

CHICKEN HOUSE

The chicken house is a wood frame building with hinged double doors and a shed roof. It was built in the 1890s
and is a contributing building.

WEST SIDE BARN (Building D)

This barn is located north of the main house on the west side of the property. It is a large frame barn
constructed by mortise and wooden pegs with no metal nails. It has a gambrel style, corrugated metal roof
which affords loft storage. It was built c. 1890 and is a contributing building.
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CARRIAGE/BLACKSMITH SHOP (Building E)

This building is a frame structure one-story at the south end and two-story at the north. The area on the first
floor (north end) was utilized as a black-smith’s shop. There are eight swing-out type doors. The roof on the
two-story portion is composition shingle and hipped type. The one-story garage addition roof is combination
shingle and corrugated metal. The building was built c. 1890 and is a contributing building. The one story
addition is currently being used for storage. The first floor of the two-story addition is currently being used as
an office and the second floor is being used as an apartment.

EAST SIDE BARN (Building F)

This barn is located north of the main house on the east side of the property. The barn was built ¢.1890 and is a
contributing building. The barn is a large frame barn with shed additions on the north and south sides. The
center portion is two- story with loft storage. This building was originally utilized as a horse barn and still has
the stables in place.

BRICK STORAGE BUILDINGS

There are two brick storage buildings. Each building has a shed roof. The southern most building has a two-
over-two window. The building with the window was built to cover a well. The buildings were built c. 1870.
They are both contributing buildings.

SUPERVISOR OF THE GROUNDS HOUSE (Tenant’s House)

This house had a two-fold purpose. It was the home for the supervisor of the grounds and his family who lived
on the first floor. The second floor was where some of the hired hands slept in two dorm style rooms. The front
of the house has two separate entrances to the first and second floors. It is a contributing building, built c. 1920,
and is currently being used as a rental house.

SHED

The shed behind the tenant’s house has a shed roof. There is a 1 single pane window on the west side. It was
built ¢.1890 and is contributing.

TICKET BOOTH

The ticket booth is believed to have come from the 1904 World’s Fair but was not located on the farmstead until
the 1970s and is a non-contributing structure. It is small wood frame building with an ogee roof adorned by a
finial.

SILO
The silo is tile with a conical roof. It was built in the 1920s and is a contributing structure.
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